
 

 

Notice of Meeting 
 
Windsor and Ascot Development Management Committee 
Councillors Amy Tisi (Chair), Mark Wilson (Vice-Chair), David Buckley, 
Alison Carpenter, Carole Da Costa, Devon Davies, Sayonara Luxton, 
Julian Sharpe and Julian Tisi 
 
Thursday 4 January 2024 7.00 pm 
Grey Room - York House & on RBWM YouTube 
 

 
Agenda 

 
 

Part I - Public Meeting 

Item Description Page  
Apologies for Absence 
 

 

1 To receive any apologies for absence. 
  
 

- 
 

 
Declarations of Interest 
 

 

2 To receive any declarations of interest. 
 

5 - 8 
  

Minutes 
 

 

3 To approve the minutes of the meeting held on 7 December 2023 as a true 
and accurate record.  
  
 

9 - 12 
 

 
23/02104/FULL - Alexandra Gardens Barry Avenue Windsor SL4 5JA 
 

 

4 

PROPOSAL: Observation Wheel and Refreshment Unit to be sited from 
March 15th 2024 to September 9th 2024. Open to the public from March 22nd 
2024 to September 2nd 2024. 
  
RECOMMENDATION: Permit 
  
APPLICANT: Mr Coupland 
  
MEMBER CALL-IN: N/A 
  
EXPIRY DATE: 31 October 2023 
 

13 - 24 
 

 
Planning Appeals Received and Planning Decision Report 
 

 

5 To note the contents of the report. 
 

25 - 28 
 

 
 
 
 

Public Document Pack

https://www.youtube.com/user/WindsorMaidenhead


 
 

 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC 
 

 

6 

To consider passing the following resolution: 
 
“That under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public 
be excluded from the remainder of the meeting whilst discussion takes place 
on the grounds that they involve disclosure of exempt information as defined 
in Paragraphs 1-7 of Part I of Schedule 12A of the Act.” 
 

- 
 

 

Part II - Private Meeting 

Item Description Page  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

7 

23/02167/FULL - The Walled Garden Frogmore Windsor  
 
PROPOSAL: Permanent retention of the existing temporary building within 
the Walled Garden of Home Park to be used as a storage facility in 
association with the Royal Estate. 
  
RECOMMENDATION: Defer and Delegate 
  
APPLICANT: Mr Maynard 
  
MEMBER CALL-IN: N/A 
  
EXPIRY DATE: 27 December 2023 
  
 
(Not for publication by virtue of Paragraph 1, 3, 6a, 6b of Part 1 of 
Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972) 
 

29 - 38 

 
By attending this meeting, participants are consenting to the audio & visual 
recording being permitted and acknowledge that this shall remain 
accessible in the public domain permanently. 
 
Please contact Mikey Lloyd, Mikey.Lloyd@RBWM.gov.uk, with any special 
requests that you may have when attending this meeting. 
 
Published: Thursday 21 December 2023  
 



LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) ACT 1985 

In accordance with the requirements of the Local Government (Access to Information) 

Act 1985, each item on this report includes Background Papers that have been relied on 

to a material extent in the formulation of the report and recommendation. 

The Background Papers will normally include relevant previous planning decisions, 

replies to formal consultations and relevant letter of representation received from local 

societies, and members of the public. For ease of reference, the total number of letters 

received from members of the public will normally be listed within the report, although a 

distinction will be made where contrary views are expressed. Any replies to 

consultations that are not received by the time the report goes to print will be recorded 

as “Comments Awaited”. 

 

The list will not include published documents such as the Town and Country Planning 

Acts and associated legislation, The National Planning Policy Framework, National 

Planning Practice Guidance, National Planning Circulars, Statutory Local Plans or other 

forms of Supplementary Planning Guidance, as the instructions, advice and policies 

contained within these documents are common to the determination of all planning 

applications. Any reference to any of these documents will be made as necessary within 

the report. 

 

STATEMENT OF THE HUMAN RIGHTS ACT 1998 

The Human Rights Act 1998 was brought into force in this country on 2nd October 2000, 

and it will now, subject to certain exceptions, be directly unlawful for a public authority to 

act in a way which is incompatible with a Convention right. In particular, Article 8 

(respect for private and family life) and Article 1 of Protocol 1 (peaceful enjoyment of 

property) apply to planning decisions. When a planning decision is to be made however, 

there is further provision that a public authority must take into account the public interest. 

In the vast majority of cases existing planning law has for many years demanded a 

balancing exercise between private rights and public interest, and therefore much of this 

authority’s decision making will continue to take into account this balance. 

The Human Rights Act will not be referred to in the Officer’s report for individual 

applications beyond this general statement, unless there are exceptional circumstances 

which demand more careful and sensitive consideration of Human Rights issues. 

3

Agenda Item 2



Revised October 2022 

 

MEMBERS’ GUIDE TO DECLARING INTERESTS AT MEETINGS 

Disclosure at Meetings 

If a Member has not disclosed an interest in their Register of Interests, they must make the declaration 
of interest at the beginning of the meeting, or as soon as they are aware that they have a Disclosable 
Pecuniary Interest (DPI) or Other Registerable Interest. If a Member has already disclosed the interest 
in their Register of Interests they are still required to disclose this in the meeting if it relates to the matter 
being discussed. 

Any Member with concerns about the nature of their interest should consult the Monitoring Officer in 
advance of the meeting.  

Non-participation in case of Disclosable Pecuniary Interest (DPI) 

Where a matter arises at a meeting which directly relates to one of your DPIs (summary below, 
further details set out in Table 1 of the Members’ Code of Conduct) you must disclose the interest, 
not participate in any discussion or vote on the matter and must not remain in the room 
unless you have been granted a dispensation. If it is a ‘sensitive interest’ (as agreed in advance by 
the Monitoring Officer), you do not have to disclose the nature of the interest, just that you have an 
interest. Dispensation may be granted by the Monitoring Officer in limited circumstances, to enable 
you to participate and vote on a matter in which you have a DPI. 

Where you have a DPI on a matter to be considered or is being considered by you as a Cabinet 
Member in exercise of your executive function, you must notify the Monitoring Officer of the interest 
and must not take any steps or further steps in the matter apart from arranging for someone else to 
deal with it. 

DPIs (relating to the Member or their partner) include: 

• Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for profit or gain. 

• Any payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other than from the council) made to the 
councillor during the previous 12-month period for expenses incurred by him/her in carrying out 
his/her duties as a councillor, or towards his/her election expenses 

• Any contract under which goods and services are to be provided/works to be executed which has 
not been fully discharged. 

• Any beneficial interest in land within the area of the council. 

• Any licence to occupy land in the area of the council for a month or longer. 

• Any tenancy where the landlord is the council, and the tenant is a body in which the relevant 
person has a beneficial interest in the securities of. 

• Any beneficial interest in securities of a body where: 
a) that body has a place of business or land in the area of the council, and 
b) either (i) the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or one hundredth of the 
total issued share capital of that body or (ii) the total nominal value of the shares of any one class 
belonging to the relevant person exceeds one hundredth of the total issued share capital of that 
class. 

Any Member who is unsure if their interest falls within any of the above legal definitions should seek 
advice from the Monitoring Officer in advance of the meeting.  

Disclosure of Other Registerable Interests 

Where a matter arises at a meeting which directly relates to one of your Other Registerable 
Interests (summary below and as set out in Table 2 of the Members Code of Conduct), you must 
disclose the interest. You may speak on the matter only if members of the public are also 
allowed to speak at the meeting but otherwise must not take part in any discussion or vote on 
the matter and must not remain in the room unless you have been granted a dispensation. If it 
is a ‘sensitive interest’ (as agreed in advance by the Monitoring Officer), you do not have to 
disclose the nature of the interest. 

4



Revised October 2022 

 

Other Registerable Interests: 

a) any unpaid directorships  

b) any body of which you are a member or are in a position of general control or management 

and to which you are nominated or appointed by your authority  

c) any body  

(i) exercising functions of a public nature  

(ii) directed to charitable purposes or  

(iii) one of whose principal purposes includes the influence of public opinion or policy (including 

any political party or trade union)  

 of which you are a member or in a position of general control or management 

Disclosure of Non- Registerable Interests 

Where a matter arises at a meeting which directly relates to your financial interest or well-being (and is 
not a DPI) or a financial interest or well-being of a relative or close associate, or a body included under 
Other Registerable Interests in Table 2 you must disclose the interest. You may speak on the matter 
only if members of the public are also allowed to speak at the meeting but otherwise must not 
take part in any discussion or vote on the matter and must not remain in the room unless you 

have been granted a dispensation. If it is a ‘sensitive interest’ (agreed in advance by the Monitoring 
Officer) you do not have to disclose the nature of the interest. 

Where a matter arises at a meeting which affects – 

a. your own financial interest or well-being; 

b. a financial interest or well-being of a friend, relative, close associate; or 

c. a financial interest or well-being of a body included under Other Registerable 
Interests as set out in Table 2 (as set out above and in the Members’ code of 
Conduct) 

you must disclose the interest. In order to determine whether you can remain in the meeting after 

disclosing your interest the following test should be applied. 

Where a matter (referred to in the paragraph above) affects the financial interest or well-being: 

a. to a greater extent than it affects the financial interests of the majority of 

inhabitants of the ward affected by the decision and; 

b. a reasonable member of the public knowing all the facts would believe that it 

would affect your view of the wider public interest 

You may speak on the matter only if members of the public are also allowed to speak at the 
meeting but otherwise must not take part in any discussion or vote on the matter and must 
not remain in the room unless you have been granted a dispensation. If it is a ‘sensitive 
interest’ (agreed in advance by the Monitoring Officer, you do not have to disclose the nature of 
the interest. 

Other declarations 

Members may wish to declare at the beginning of the meeting any other information they feel should 

be in the public domain in relation to an item on the agenda; such Member statements will be included 

in the minutes for transparency. 

5



This page is intentionally left blank



WINDSOR AND ASCOT DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 
 

Thursday 7 December 2023 
 
Present: Councillors Amy Tisi (Chair), Mark Wilson (Vice-Chair), David Buckley, 
Alison Carpenter, Devon Davies, Julian Sharpe and Julian Tisi 
 
Officers: Mikey Lloyd, Adrien Waite, Jo Richards and James Overall 
 
Officers in attendance virtually: Helena Stevenson and Nick Westlake 
 
Also in attendance: Councillor Helen Price 
 
 
Apologies for Absence 
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors C. Da Costa and Luxton 
 
 
Declarations of Interest 
 
Councillor Carpenter declared they were a ward councillor for agenda item 4, they came to the 
meeting with an open mind. 
Councillor J. Tisi declared they were a ward councillor for agenda item 6 and agenda item 7, 
they came to the meeting with an open mind.  
Councillor Wilson declared they were a ward councillor for agenda items 6 and agenda item 7, 
they came to the meeting with an open mind.  
Councillor Buckley declared they were a ward councillor for agenda item 5, they came to the 
meeting with an open mind.  
 
 
Minutes 
 
AGREED: That the minutes of the meeting held on Thursday 5 October were a true and 
accurate record. 
 
 
23/01090/FULL - Grasmere Broadleys Hale And Winwood And Land At Sawyers 
Close Windsor 
 
Councillor Sharpe put forward a motion to grant planning permission on the satisfactory 
completion of a S106 legal agreement to secure conditions laid out in the report and a S278 
legal agreement for four on street (Smiths Lane) parking spaces and with the conditions listed 
in Section 14 of the report. This was seconded by Councillor Davies. 
  
 A named vote was taken. 
23/01090/FULL - Grasmere Broadleys Hale and Winwood and Land at Sawyers Close 
Windsor (Motion) 
Councillor Amy Tisi For 
Councillor Mark Wilson For 
Councillor David Buckley For 
Councillor Alison Carpenter For 
Councillor Devon Davies For 
Councillor Julian Sharpe For 
Councillor Julian Tisi For 
Carried 7

Agenda Item 3



  
AGREED UNANIMOUSLY: That planning permission be granted on the satisfactory 
completion of a S106 legal agreement to secure conditions laid out in the report and a 
S278 legal agreement for four on street (Smiths Lane) parking spaces and with the 
conditions listed in Section 14 of the report. 
  
The committee were addressed by three public speakers. Sonia Robinson, Objector, Stephen 
Lodge, Applicant, and Councillor Helen Price.  
  
  
 
23/01387/FULL - Broom Lodge And Land At Broom Lodge Stanwell Road Horton 
Slough 
 
Councillor J. Tisi  put forward a motion to refuse planning permission for the reasons given in 
Section 12 of the report. This was seconded by Councillor Sharpe. 
  
A named vote was taken. 

  
AGREED UNANIMOUSLY: That planning permission be refused for the reasons given in 
section 12 of the report.  
  
The committee were addressed by one public speaker, Brigid Taylor, Applicant.  
  
  
 
23/01516/FULL - 59-59A St Leanards Road Windsor 
 
Councillor Davies put forward a motion to grant planning permission on the satisfactory 
completion of a unilateral undertaking to secure the carbon off set contribution in Section 10 of 
the report and with the conditions listed in Section 15 of the report. This was seconded by 
Councillor J. Tisi. 
  
A named vote was taken. 
  
23/01516/FUL - 59-59A St Leonard Road Windsor (Motion) 
Councillor Amy Tisi For 
Councillor Mark Wilson For 
Councillor David Buckley Against 
Councillor Alison Carpenter Against 
Councillor Devon Davies For 
Councillor Julian Sharpe Against 
Councillor Julian Tisi For 
Carried 

23/01387/FULL - Brrom Lodge and Land at Broom Lodge Stanwell Road Horton Slough 
(Motion) 
Councillor Amy Tisi For 
Councillor Mark Wilson For 
Councillor David Buckley For 
Councillor Alison Carpenter For 
Councillor Devon Davies For 
Councillor Julian Sharpe For 
Councillor Julian Tisi For 
Carried 

8



AGREED: To grant planning permission on the satisfactory completion of a unilateral 
undertaking to secure the carbon off set contribution in Section 10 of the report and 
with the conditions listed in Section 15 of the report. 
  
The committee were addressed by two public speakers, Luke Juby, Objector and Mark 
Allaway, Applicant. 
 
 
 
23/02143/FULL - RBWM Recycling Site At Windsor Leisure Centre Stovell Road 
Windsor SL4 5JB 
 
Councillor Davies put forward a motion to grant planning permission with the conditions listed 
in Section 14 of the report. This was seconded by Councillor J. Tisi. 
  
A named vote was taken. 

  
AGREED UNANIMOUSLY: That planning permission be granted with the conditions 
listed in section 14 for the report.  
 
 
Planning Decision Report and Planning Appeals Received 
 
The committee noted the report. 
 
 
The meeting, which began at 7.06 pm, finished at 9.38 pm 
 

Chair.……………………………………. 
 

Date……………………………….......... 
 

23/02143/FULL - RBWM Recycling Site at Windsor Leisure Centre Stovell Road Windsor 
SL4 5JB (Motion) 
Councillor Amy Tisi For 
Councillor Mark Wilson For 
Councillor David Buckley For 
Councillor Alison Carpenter For 
Councillor Devon Davies For 
Councillor Julian Sharpe For 
Councillor Julian Tisi For 
Carried 

9



This page is intentionally left blank



ROYAL BOROUGH OF WINDSOR & MAIDENHEAD 
PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 
 DEVELOPMENT CONTROL PANEL 

 
4 January 2024         
 Item:  1 
Application 
No.: 

23/02104/FULL 

Location: Alexandra Gardens Barry Avenue Windsor SL4 5JA  
Proposal: Observation Wheel and Refreshment Unit to be sited from March 15th 

2024 to September 9th 2024. Open to the public from March 22nd 2024 
to September 2nd 2024. 

Applicant: Mr Coupland 
Agent: Mr Simon Loveday 
Parish/Ward: Windsor Unparished/Eton And Castle 
  
If you have a question about this report, please contact:  Briony Franklin on 01628 
796007 or at briony.franklin@rbwm.gov.uk 

 
1. SUMMARY 
 
1.1 This application follows other temporary permissions to construct an observation wheel 

in Alexandra Gardens, the last one being in 2012. The siting of the observation wheel 
and refreshment unit would be for a temporary period between the months of March 
and September 2024 (including set up and dismantling). Since 2016 an ice rink and 
attractions have been sited within the Gardens between the months of November and 
January. 
 

1.2 The observation wheel would have an overall height of 35 metres and would be sited 
on the southern side of the central pathway which runs east/west through the Gardens. 
The level of harm caused to the adjacent Conservation Area would be less than 
substantial. This harm would be outweighed by the public benefits of the proposal 
which include benefits to the town’s economy from the increase in the visitor numbers 
to the area. 

 
1.3 Given the temporary nature of the proposal it is acceptable in terms of its impact on 

the character and appearance of the site itself, the River Thames Corridor, the living 
conditions of neighbouring properties, flood risk, trees, highways, parking and 
sustainability.  

 
It is recommended the Committee grants planning permission with the conditions listed 
in Section 14 of this report. 

 
2. REASON FOR COMMITTEE DETERMINATION 
 

 The Council’s Constitution does not give the Head of Planning delegated powers to 
determine the application in the way recommended as the Council has an interest in 
the land. 

 
3. THE SITE AND ITS SURROUNDINGS 
 

11

Agenda Item 4



3.1 Alexandra Gardens is a large public amenity space which lies to the south of Barry 
Avenue and the River Thames and to the west of Goswell Road close to Windsor town 
centre. The gardens comprise large areas of lawn with trees/planting and is intersected 
by several paved walkways. To the south of the site lies the coach park, public car park 
and cafe and gift shops. Views of Windsor Castle are available from the gardens.  

 
4. KEY CONSTRAINTS   
 
4.1     Alexandra Gardens lies within the River Thames Corridor and Flood Zone 3 (High 

probability of flooding). The site lies adjacent to the Windsor Town Centre 
Conservation Area. 

 
5. THE PROPOSAL  
 
5.1 Planning permission is sought to construct a 35m high observation wheel in Alexandra 

Gardens between the 15th March 2024 and the 9th September 2024 (including setting 
up and dismantling). The wheel will operate between the hours of 11am and 9pm at 
weekends and holidays and between 1pm and 9pm during off peak weekdays. The 
gondolas would have low level ambient lighting and will only be lit up at dusk. 

 
5.2      A refreshment kiosk would be sited alongside the observation wheel, on a decked area. 
 
6. RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY 
 
6.1      There have been several other temporary permissions granted for observation wheels 

in other locations within the gardens, set out as follows: 
 

Reference Description Decision  

21/01599/FULL Observation wheel and refreshment unit to be sited from 
1st July to 30th September 2021 

Withdrawn 
14.2.23 

21/02291/FULL Ice rink and attractions from November to January 2022-
2025. 

Permitted 6.5.22 

12/00875/FULL Erection of an observation/Ferris wheel with associated 
equipment and facilities for a temporary period to be 
constructed from the 11 May 2012 in use between the 
18th May 2012 through to 15th July 2012 and dismantled 
and removed from site by 20th July 2012. 

Permitted 
25.5.2012 

11/00128/FULL  Erection of an observation/Ferris wheel with associated 
equipment and facilities for a temporary period to be 
constructed from the 4th April 2011 in use between the 9th 
April 2011 to 30th October 2011 and dismantled and 
removed from site by 4th November 2011. 

Permitted 
17.3.2011 

10/00009/FULL  Erection of an observation/Ferris wheel with associated 
equipment and facilities for a temporary period to be 
constructed from the 15th March 2010 in use between the 
27th March 2010 to 31st October 2010 and dismantled and 
removed from site by 6th November 2010 

Permitted  
18.2.2010 

08/03102/FULL Election of an observation/Ferris wheel with associated 
equipment and facilities for a temporary period from 2nd 
April 2009 to 1st November 2009 and dismantled and 
removed from site by 8th November 2009. 

Permitted 
23.2.2009 

12



08/00279/TEMP Erection of a 52m high observation/Ferris wheel with 
associated equipment and facilities for a temporary 
period 17th June to 7th November 2008 

Permitted 
11.6.2008 

07/02201/VAR Variation of condition 1 of planning permission 07/000074 
to allow the wheel to operate until 9th November 2007 

Permitted 
8.10/2007 

06/00705/TEMP Erection of a 55 metre high observation/Ferris wheel with 
associated equipment for a temporary period of 16 weeks 

Permitted  
26.5.2006 

 
7. DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
 
7.1 The main relevant policies are: 
 
 Adopted Borough Local Plan  
  

Issue Policy 
Climate Change SP2 

Character and Design of New Development QP3 

River Thames Corridor QP4 

Historic Environment HE1 

Managing Flood Risk and Waterways NR1 

Trees, Woodlands and Hedgerows NR3 

Environmental Protection EP1 

Artificial Light Pollution EP3 

Noise EP4 

Sustainable Transport IF2 

Open Space IF4 
 
 
8. MATERIAL PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS  
 

National Planning Policy Framework Sections (NPPF) (2021) 
 
Section 12- Achieving well-designed places  

 Section 14- Meeting the challenge of climate change, flooding and coastal change 
 Section 16- Conserving and enhancing the historic environment 
 
 Supplementary Planning Documents 

 
 Borough Wide Design Guide 
 Conservation Area Appraisal – Windsor Town Centre 2009  
 

Other Local Strategies or Publications 
 
 Interim Sustainability Position Statement 
 Environment and Climate Strategy 

13



 
9. CONSULTATIONS CARRIED OUT 
 
 Comments from interested parties 
 
 7 occupiers were notified directly of the application.  
 
             The planning officer posted a site notice advertising the application on the 15th 

September 2023. 
 

3 letters were received objecting to the application including a letter from The 
Windsor and Eton Society, summarised as:  

 

Comment 
Where in the 
report this is 
considered 

1. Visual harm of installation and associated noise, lighting and general 
effect on peaceful area for relaxation. 

Section 10i & iv 

2. Adverse impact on nearby residents from lights and noise. Section 10 iv 
2. Decimation of Alexandra Gardens – lawns need time to recover from 

the ice rink 
Section 10 viii 

3. Visitors will be attracted away from the town centre Section 10i 
4. The proposal will be in place throughout the summer months and will 

impact people’s ability to enjoy the gardens 
Section 10 ii 

5. Alexandra Gardens is a pretty public garden near the river Thames with 
seating, a bandstand and grassed area perfect for picnic. 

Section 10 ii 

6. With the Ice rink installed from end of October to February and then 
wheel installed from March to September there is not time for 
Alexandra Gardens to be enjoyed – contrary to IF4. 

Section 10 ii 

7. Adverse effect on setting of nearby Heritage Assets and views of 
Windsor Castle. 

Section 10i 

8. Overlooking of properties in Bridgewater Terrace Section 10iv 
 
 Consultees 
 

Consultee Comment 
Where in the 
report this is 
considered 

 
Environment 
Agency  

 
Objection– no FRA submitted 

 
Section 10v 

 
Conservation 
Officer 

 
Less than substantial harm 

 
Section 10i 

 
Environmental 
Protection 

 
No comments to make 

 
Noted 

 
 
10. EXPLANATION OF RECOMMENDATION 
 
10.1 The key issues for consideration are: 
   

14



i. The impact on the Heritage Assets and character and appearance of the 
area. 

 
10.2 Alexandra Gardens lies just outside the Windsor Town Centre Conservation Area 

which lies to the east of Goswell Road. The grade II listed Windsor Royal Station 
complex lies to the southeast of Alexandra Gardens. There are views available from 
the park towards Windsor Castle. Adopted policy HE1 states that the historic 
environment should be conserved and enhanced in a manner appropriate to its 
significance and development proposals are required to demonstrate how they 
preserve or enhance the character, appearance and function of heritage assets. Policy 
QP3 sets out several design criteria including the retention of important local views of 
historic buildings including key landmarks such as Windsor Castle. 

 
10.3 The observation wheel would have a total height of 35m.  The refreshment unit, 

measuring 8m by 4m and 4m in height would be sited on a decked area to the east of 
the observation wheel. Both would be sited parallel to the central path running east to 
west through the gardens. The siting would maintain the views of Windsor Castle from 
the Gardens and enable the footpath to be used. The bandstand on the northern 
section of the Gardens would be unaffected by the proposal.  

 
10.4 The wheel would be set back approximately 53m from Goswell Road and 

approximately 63m from the Conservation Area. Whilst it is acknowledged that the 
wheel would have a negative impact on the setting and significance of the adjacent 
Conservation Area and nearby listed structures, the impact on the setting of these 
heritage assets would be temporary in nature and therefore low to moderate. The level 
of harm caused would be less than substantial and where proposals would lead to 
less than substantial harm to the significance of a designated heritage asset, the harm 
should be weighed against the public benefits of the proposal (paragraph 202 of the 
NPPF). In this case given the heritage impacts are minor and there would be a positive 
benefit to the economy of the town centre and a beneficial increase in visitor numbers 
to the area, the limited harm to heritage would be outweighed. 

 
10.5  Overall the proposal is acceptable in terms of adopted policies HE1 and QP3. 
 

ii. Impact on Open Space and River Thames Corridor 
 
10.6 Adopted policy IF4 seeks to protect, maintain and where possible enhance existing 

open space in the Borough. Only part of the gardens would be used for the observation 
wheel and refreshment unit, with the majority of the gardens remaining unaffected by 
proposal. There would still be a large amount of space retained for leisure activities 
and relaxation. It will however be important to ensure that the land is reinstated to its 
original condition once the structures are removed, and this can be conditioned. Given 
the temporary nature of the proposal, it is acceptable in terms of adopted policy IF4. 

 
10.7 The site lies within the River Thames Corridor. Adopted policy QP4 seeks to conserve 

and enhance the special character and setting of the river Thames. The wheel would 
be sited approximately 63m from the river and would be partially screened by trees 
and hedges which lie around the perimeter of the gardens. Long distant views of the 
wheel from Eton Bridge and the river would be fairly well screened by the trees and 
given the temporary nature of the proposal it would not give rise to an unacceptable 
impact on the character and setting of the River Thames. 

 
iii. Climate Change and Sustainability 

 

15



10.8 Adopted policy SP2 requires all developments to demonstrate how they have been 
designed to incorporate measures to adapt to and mitigate climate change and the 
Interim Sustainability Position Statement sets out various measures which need to be 
achieved. In this case the floor area would be less than 100sq.m and therefore the 
requirements of the ISPS do not apply. However, it is still important to ensure the 
proposal is as sustainable as it can be to help reduce carbon emissions. In this regard 
an Energy Statement has been provided and confirms that power is to be obtained 
from a green power box on the edge of the gardens and a single 63amp cable will be 
covered by cable track. The wheel would be lit using low powered LED lights and will 
be only turned on at dusk. 

 
 10.9   Given the temporary nature of the use it is considered that the measures being 

proposed are sufficient to help adapt to and mitigate climate change and the 
sustainability measures can be secured by condition. 

 
  

iv. The impact on the living conditions of nearby properties 
 
10.10 Adopted policies QP3, EP1, EP3 and EP4 seek to protect residential amenity. The 

nearest residential properties are in Castleview House, an over 55’s development on 
the corner of Goswell Road and Bridgewater Road, to the southeast of the site. 
Approximately 73m would be maintained between the proposed wheel and the 
nearest residential properties. The wheel would operate between the hours of 11am 
and 9pm at weekends and holidays and between 1pm and 9pm during off peak 
weekdays. All lighting will be extinguished outside of public opening hours and no 
music will be played. 

 
10.11 Given the distance maintained between the wheel and the neighbouring residential 

properties the proposal would not result in an unacceptable impact on their living 
conditions in terms of privacy, noise or light pollution and would accord with adopted 
policy QP3, EP1, EP3 and EP4. 

 
v. Flood Risk 

 
10.12 The site lies within Flood Zone 3a (high probability of flooding). A basic Flood Risk 

Statement has been provided by the applicant.  A site-specific Flood Risk Assessment 
is normally required in accordance with paragraph 167 of the NPPF and adopted 
policy NR1 and Environment Agency has raised objection on this basis. 

 
 
 
10.13   In commenting on the previously withdrawn application the EA raised no objection 

subject to an appropriate condition being secured. Given the temporary nature of the 
proposal, the impact on the flood plain is unlikely to be significant or even measurable 
and a sequential approach is not required in this case. An emergency plan has been 
provided within the ‘Flood Risk Assessment and Emergency Plan’ received on the 1st 
December 2023.  

 
10.14  Subject to securing an appropriate condition, the proposal is acceptable in terms of 

flood risk and accords with adopted policy NR1. 
 

vi. Highway safety and parking 
 
10.15 The site is located close to Windsor town centre, in an area of good accessibility, close 

to the railway stations and public transport. Visitors would also have the use of existing 

16



on-street parking in Barry Avenue and several public car parks nearby. A travel Plan 
accompanies the application and seeks to encourage the use of public transport by 
offering discounted ticket prices for those using public transport. 

 
10.16 The proposal raises no highway or parking concerns and accords with adopted policy 

IF2.  
 

vii. Impact on trees 
 
10.17 There are several important trees within the park, mainly confined to the boundaries. 

Adopted policy NR3 requires development proposals to carefully consider the impact 
of the proposed development on existing trees. A tree plan indicating root protection 
area has been supplied. 

 
10.18 The proposed observation wheel and refreshment unit would be sited well away from 

any trees as shown on the layout drawing and construction traffic will access the site 
from Goswell Road and will not encroach into the RPAs of any surrounding trees. The 
Construction and Dismantling Statement confirms that no vehicles associated with the 
construction and dismantling will need to cross soft ground. Vehicles will access the 
site from Goswell Road.  

 
10.19 Subject to securing a suitable condition, the proposal is acceptable in terms of its 

impact on trees and accords with adopted policy NR3. 
 

viii. Other Issues 
 
10.20 The ice rink and attractions are required to be dismantled by 22nd January 2024 which 

should give the site enough time to recover and be restored before the Observation 
wheel is installed from the 15th March 2024. 

 
11. COMMUNITY INFRASTRUCTURE LEVY (CIL) 
 
11.1 The proposal is not CIL liable. 
 
12. CONCLUSION 
 
12.1 Notwithstanding that the proposal is in a sensitive location, the proposal is for a 

temporary period only and considering the associated benefits to the local economy 
and town centre, the scheme is acceptable. The application complies with the relevant 
policies set out in the adopted Borough Local Plan. 

 
13. APPENDICES TO THIS REPORT 
 

Appendix A - Site location plan and layout plan 
Appendix B - Details of observation wheel and refreshment unit 
 

14. CONDITIONS RECOMMENDED FOR INCLUSION IF PERMISSION IS GRANTED  
 
 
 
 
 
1 The development shall not commence until the 15th March 2024 and the observation 

wheel shall not be open to the public until the 22nd March 2024. The use shall be 
discontinued on or before the 2nd September 2024. The wheel and all associated 

17



structures shall be removed in their entirety from the site and the land restored to its 
previous condition on or before the 9th September 2024. 
Reason: The proposal does not constitute a form of development that the Local 
Planning Authority would normally permit.  However, in view of the particular 
circumstances of this application temporary planning permission is granted.  Relevant  
policies - Local Plan HE1, QP3 and NR1. 

 2 The wheel and refreshment kiosk shall only operate between the hours of 11am and 
9pm. 

Reason: To protect the amenities of nearby residents. Relevant policies - Local Plan 
QP3 and EP4. 

3 The development shall be carried out in accordance with the details set out in the  
construction and dismantle statements and the layout drawing showing the trees and 
root protection areas.  
Reason: To protect the trees which contribute to the visual amenities of the area and 
in the interests of highway safety.  Relevant Policies - Local Plan NR3 and IF2. 

4 The development shall be carried out in accordance with the Flood Risk Statement 
and operate in accordance with the flood Emergency Plan  provided in the 'Flood Risk 
Assessment and Emergency Plan' received on the 1st December 2023. 

 Reason: To ensure appropriate flood mitigation. Relevant Policy - Local Plan NR1. 
5 The development shall be carried out in accordance with the lighting statement 

received on the 25th August 2023. 
 Reason: To prevent light pollution. Relevant policy - Local Plan EP3. 
6 The development shall be undertaken in accordance with the details set out in the 

Observation Wheel Travel Plan 2024. 
Reason: To help encourage more sustainable modes of transport. Relevant Policy - 
Local Plan IF2. 

7 The development shall be carried out in accordance with the sustainability measures 
set out in the Energy Statement received on the 1st December 2023. 

 Reason: To ensure appropriate sustainability measures. Relevant Policy - Local Plan 
SP2. 
8 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the 

approved plans listed below. 
Reason: To ensure that the development is carried out in accordance with the 
approved particulars and plans. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

18



Appendix A   
 

 

APPENDIX A 

 

LOCATION PLAN 

 

LAYOUT PLAN 

 

APPENDIX B 

19



Appendix A   
 

 

 

DETAILS OF OBSERVATION WHEEL 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

20



Appendix A   
 

 

 

 

 

REFRESHMENT KIOSK 

 

 

 

 

21



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 1   

     Appeal Decision Report 
 

23 November 2023 - 19 December 2023 
 

         Windsor and Ascot 
 
 

 
 
 
Appeal Ref.: 23/60045/NOND

ET 
Planning Ref.: 22/02544/FULL PIns Ref.: APP/T0355/W/22/

3313272 
Appellant: Daljit Bhail Brookfield House Park Lane Horton SL3 9PR  
Decision Type: Delegated Officer Recommendation: Refuse 
Description: Single storey side extension to link the main dwelling to the detached Summer Room. 
Location: Brookfield Lodge Datchet Road Horton Slough SL3 9PS  
Appeal Decision: Allowed Decision Date: 11 December 2023 
 
Main Issue: 

 
 

 
Appeal Ref.: 23/60046/NOND

ET 
Planning Ref.: 22/02545/LBC PIns Ref.: APP/T0355/Y/22/

3313273 
Appellant: Daljit Bhail Brookfield House Park Lane Horton SL3 9PR  
Decision Type: Delegated Officer Recommendation: Refuse 
Description: Consent for a single storey side extension to link the main dwelling to the detached Summer 

Room. 
Location: Brookfield Lodge Datchet Road Horton Slough SL3 9PS  
Appeal Decision: Allowed Decision Date: 11 December 2023 
 
Main Issue: 

 
 

 
 
Appeal Ref.: 23/60059/REF Planning Ref.: 22/02089/FULL PIns Ref.: APP/T0355/D/23/

3318228 
Appellant: Mrs Parwinder Kaur Sian c/o Agent: Mr Terence Telles First Floor 1 Hythe Street 

DARTFORD DA1 1BE 
Decision Type: Delegated Officer Recommendation: Refuse 
Description: New electric entrance gates, brick boundary wall and hardstanding (Retrospective). 
Location: Sunnyside Stanwell Road Horton Slough SL3 9PE  
Appeal Decision: Dismissed Decision Date: 1 December 2023 
 
Main Issue: 

 
Appeal dismissed on the grounds that the development is harmful to the character and 
appearance of the area in terms of its height, design and materials and contrary to BLP 
policy QP3, policy NP/HOU1 and principle 9.1 of the Borough Wide Local Plan 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

23

Agenda Item 5



Page 2   

 
 
 
 
 

Planning Appeals Received 
 

27 November 2023 - 19 December 2023 
 

Windsor and Ascot 
 
The appeals listed below have been received by the Council and will be considered by the Planning 
Inspectorate.  Should you wish to make additional/new comments in connection with an appeal you can do so on 
the Planning Inspectorate website at https://acp.planninginspectorate.gov.uk/ please use the PIns reference 
number.  If you do not have access to the Internet please write to the relevant address, shown below. 
 
Enforcement appeals:  The Planning Inspectorate, Temple Quay House, 2 The Square, Temple Quay, Bristol, 

BS1 6PN  
 
Other appeals:  The Planning Inspectorate Temple Quay House, 2 The Square Bristol BS1 6PN  
Ward:  
Parish: Windsor Unparished 
Appeal Ref.: 23/60095/REF Planning Ref.: 23/01453/CPD PIns Ref.: APP/T0355/X/23/

3333956 
Date Received: 28 November 2023 Comments Due: 9 January 2024 
Type: Refusal Appeal Type: Written Representation 
Description: Certificate of lawfulness to determine whether the proposed siting of a mobile home to be 

used as additional accommodation to the main dwelling is lawful. 
Location: 5 Combermere Close Windsor SL4 3PY  
Appellant: Katherine Shewell c/o Agent: Mrs Rebecca Lord Rebecca Lord Planning 44 Barton Drive 

Hamble Le Rice Southampton SO31 4RE  
 
Ward:  
Parish: Sunningdale Parish 
Appeal Ref.: 23/60096/REF Planning Ref.: 21/02263/FULL PIns Ref.: APP/T0355/W/23/

3329069 
Date Received: 28 November 2023 Comments Due: 2 January 2024 
Type: Refusal Appeal Type: Written Representation 
Description: Erection of a replacement building containing 10 apartments with associated landscaping 

and basement parking and alteration to vehicular and pedestrian access following demolition 
of existing apartment building and attached dwelling. 

Location: Courtleigh Manor House And Courtleigh House Lady Margaret Road Sunningdale 
Ascot   

Appellant: Apricot Properties Ltd C/o Agent 
 
 
Ward:  
Parish: Windsor Unparished 
Appeal Ref.: 23/60100/REF Planning Ref.: 23/01358/FULL PIns Ref.: APP/T0355/D/23/

3333199 
Date Received: 1 December 2023 Comments Due: TBA 
Type: Refusal Appeal Type: Fast Track Appeal 
Description: Hip to gable and raising of the ridge to accommodate habitable accommodation within the 

roofspace, 1no. rear dormer, new mono pitch roof to west elevation and alterations to 
fenestration. 

Location: 39 Green Lane Windsor SL4 3RZ  
Appellant: Mr Isaac 39 Green Lane Windsor SL4 3RZ  

 
 
Ward:  
Parish: Sunninghill And Ascot Parish 
Appeal Ref.: 23/60104/REF Planning Ref.: 22/02629/VAR PIns Ref.: APP/T0355/W/23/

3324554 
Date Received: 13 December 2023 Comments Due: 17 January 2024 

24

https://acp.planninginspectorate.gov.uk/


Page 3   

Type: Refusal Appeal Type: Written Representation 
Description: Variation (under Section 73) of Condition 13 (Approved Plans) to substitute those plans 

approved under 21/02702/FULL for a replacement dwelling following demolition of existing 
elements and x1 new vehicular access with amended plans. 

Location: Maryland Horse Gate Ride Ascot SL5 9LS  
Appellant: Mr G Scott c/o Agent: Mr Jason O'Donnell Arktec Ltd Lodge Farm Barn Elvetham Park 

Estate Fleet Road Hartley Wintney RG27 8AS  
 
Ward:  
Parish: Sunninghill And Ascot Parish 
Appeal Ref.: 23/60105/REF Planning Ref.: 23/00277/VAR PIns Ref.: APP/T0355/W/23/

3324556 
Date Received: 13 December 2023 Comments Due: 17 January 2024 
Type: Refusal Appeal Type: Written Representation 
Description: Variation (under Section 73) of Condition 13 to substitute those plans approved under 

21/02702/FULL for the replacement dwelling following demolition of existing elements and x1 
new vehicular access. with amended plans. 

Location: Maryland Horse Gate Ride Ascot SL5 9LS  
Appellant: Mr G Scott c/o Agent: Mr Jason O'Donnell Arktec Ltd Lodge Farm Barn Elvetham Park 

Estate Fleet Road Hartley Wintney RG27 8AS  
 
 
 

25



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

27

Agenda Item 7
By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 3, 6a, 6b of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

35

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 3, 6a, 6b of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Declarations of Interest
	3 Minutes
	4 23/02104/FULL - Alexandra Gardens Barry Avenue Windsor SL4 5JA
	7.	DEVELOPMENT PLAN
	i.	The impact on the Heritage Assets and character and appearance of the area.

	23-02104 appendix

	5 Planning Appeals Received and Planning Decision Report
	7 23/02167/FULL - The Walled Garden Frogmore Windsor
	23-02167- appendix


